WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

The Regular Meeting of the Water Pollution Control Authority was called to order by
Chairman Michael DeAngelis at 7:07 p.m. on Wednesday, August 11, 2010 in Room 305
of Shelton City Hall, 54 Hill Street, Shelton, CT 06484.

The following Commissioners were in attendance to constitute a quorum:

Commissioner Steve Morse
Commissioner Edwin Hellauer
Commissioner Michael DeAngelis
Commissioner Regis Dognin
Commissioner Bronislaw Piotrowski

Absent were: Commissioner Anthony Presutto - excused
Commissioner Todd Dowty - excused

Also attending were: Thomas Sym, Sewer Administrator
Lori Gibson, Sewer Administrator’s Office
Jeff Shortell - WPCP
Ed Comboni - WPCP
Alan Asikainen - Maguire Group
Steve Landry - Maguire Group
Charles Chiu - Maguire Group
Tiffany Rowin - Hadlyme Environmental Engineers, LLC

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
2. PUBLIC PORTION
There was no one from the Public.

3A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY
14, 2010

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Hellauer and seconded by Commissioner
Dognin to accept the Minutes as presented with the one correction: On page two, the
reference to Class 3 &4 food establishments is not correct. All were in favor. Motion
carried unanimously.

3B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JULY
14,2010

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Dognin and seconded by Commissioner
Morse to accept the Minutes as presented. All were in favor. Motion carried
unanimously.

4. COMMUNICATIONS

A. FOG ORDINANCE #849

This Ordinance #849 is Providing for Discharge of Fats, Oils and Grease and was
signed by Mayor Lauretti on 7/13/2010.

Commissioner DeAngelis asked Commissioner Dognin to ask the webmaster, Rudy
Skowronski, to put it on the website.




WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Commissioner Morse said lets talk about what should and should not be on the website.
We don’t have any other Ordinances on the website - is this going to be the only
Ordinance on the website?

Commissioner Dognin said there are dozens of ordinances.

Commissioner Morse said this should go on the website as well as the FOG fees, etc.
Now is the time to decide what we want to put on the website.

Commissioner DeAngelis said the fee schedule and applications.

Tiffany Rowin from Hadlyme said that Katherine Scott wanted me to go over some
things from Phase 2.

Commissioner DeAngelis said lets wait until later on the agenda.

Commissioner Dognin said we should put this Ordinance on the website for a year and
then take it off as it is pertinent now.

B. D.E.P. Revised Approval

(This is for Sanitary Sewer System Rehab Phase 2 - Revised Approval).

Mr. Charlie Chiu said we had to make modifications to the drawing. The DEP has
reviewed and approved it.

Commissioner Morse said we added work from last year.

Commissioner DeAngelis asked if you can revise this and add work without notifying
DEP?

Alan Asikainen said “Yes, you can”.

C. Budget Worksheet

Commissioner Morse indicated we just got the Budget worksheet and he has not had time
to review it.

The Sewer Usage Fee from June in now in our July income page - Hurray!! Last year we
had to wait six months to get it.

D. Superintendent’s Report

Jeff Shortell said you asked me to bring the guy from Superior. | have brought Tom
Secondino from Superior here tonight.

Tom Secondino
Superior Service Group
411 Wiese Road
Cheshire, CT

Jeff Shortell indicated this is in reference to refrigerant leaks - which I brought to your
attention back in April - and Maguire Group had said they never saw A/C leaks caused by
H2S. There are thirteen (13) leaks in one unit. We had talked about coating.

Tom Secondino indicated he has pictures of Shelton’s plant as well as other plants we
have done. The leaks are primarily in the refrigerant headers on evaporator and
condenser coils. The copper is oxidizing at a rate we don’t see anywhere else. Coded
coils are not spec’d at any other plants. Hydrogen sulfide’s effect on copper tubing.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

My goals was to detail the issues you have and Trane’s position. Trane says they should
be coded if they are subject to any compounds that would cause corrosion; they say they
should be coded.

Commissioner DeAngelis asked if they specifically say plants? | would consider it if the
plant was by the ocean and swimming pools that they would need to be coated.

Mr. Sym said perhaps the cause is sewer gas.

Tom Secondino showed pictures of the Stratford and Naugatuck plants and the copper is
not corroded.

Trane is saying their warranty (leaks) is void because of corrosion (oxidation).

Because you have oxidation on coils, Trane is saying their warranty is void. Mr.
Secondino said he has spoken to a few companies who said they could come up and test
some remaining units that have not been repaired to take a look at the integrity of the
welds on the header. The majority of the leaks that | have repaired have been in the
headers on the evaporator and condenser coils.

Superior (my company) services your units. He described a broken part.

Trane says there are some airborne contaminants that are attacking the joints. Trane
offers as an option, coated coils or entirely coated units which is what they suggest for
stuff that is going to operate in this environment.

What | find problematic and why | have supplied you with pictures, is that we do not find
this in any other treatment plants we work with. | don’t know if there is something in the
ground or specific to that area. We do not find this at other treatment plants and they are
not coated either.

Jeff Shortell indicated that we have always had this problem.

Tom Secondino said he talked to the Project Manager who ran the job. The fittings
turned black overnight. Something is going on over there. The belimo motors are going.
I never changed belimo motors in my life and you have had three that have gone already.
Fortunately, they are under warranty. Something in the air is causing problems.

Mr. Sym asked if it is possible that improper ventilation is causing this stuff?

Mr. Asikainen said he just does not know. No engineers that | spoke to design for
corrosion protection on roof top units at treatment plants. Only at ocean areas and pools.
I agree with Tom Secondino that there is something in the air and | don’t know what it is
or perhaps it is a ground issue. It is a mystery. We designed what was normal in the
industry. As Tom said, this is the only plant that has an issue like this.

Commissioner Piotrowski said this area was once a coal dock there.

Commissioner Hellauer asked if there is any difference that you are so close to the river?
How do we find out the problem?

Tom Secondino said Stratford is close to the ocean - there is some corrosion but not like
Shelton’s and they don’t have coated units either.

There is a problem in the motor control rooms. One of the issues you have is because of
“Trane’s corrosion voiding warranty”, even if it is an issue with Trane’s braised joints,
then that is an out for them.

Commissioner DeAngelis said he would like to see Trane’s warranty that states that.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Tom Secondino said he will email that to Commissioner DeAngelis. | have no loyalty to
Trane. | just want to report to you what I am finding. The fact that that stub broke off
with the braised around it - that just does not happen with welding.

Mr. Sym asked if you can meter the sulfite in the air?
Tom Secondino said that Garrett at the plant takes measurements and it does not show
there are any concerns. The unit on top of the building has the most leaks in it (13 leaks).

It is a significant ongoing issue. Copper tubing is being attacked.

Mr. Asikainen said perhaps Trane has a problem with soldering joints. Since that is
where you are doing repairs. Leaks are at the joints.

Tom Secondino said it is a factory weld. Perhaps it is a factory defect.

Ed Comboni said | have been at the Plant for 37 years. If you leave your spare change on
the desk, pennies will disappear due to the corrosion. The main control panel has gotten
corroded. We used to have things gold plated to last longer.

Jeff Shortell said it has been going on for years.

Tom Secondino said we limited as to what we can do. | had asked Trane to come and
look at it, but they will charge $600 at a minimum to do so.

Jeff Shortell said Superior has done a great job to keep us going.

Tom Secondino said if this Board wants to pursue with Trane, | will provide any
information available to you that you need, documentation and the stub that broke off.

He continued that the joint leakage is not in other plants like it is in Shelton. | don’t
know where Trane is manufacturing their coils. Units are sequential.

We have six (6) rooftop units and you have to remedy the air and it is happening
everywhere.

Commissioner Hellauer said we need to do some air testing.
Ed Comboni said gas meter in the ground (everyone was talking here).

Alan Asikainen said he knows several outfits - one that tests air for safety and one for
corrosion and why the corrosion is taking place. | can call them if you like. Perhaps we
can ask Derby Plant if they have copper problems in Derby. It sounds like something site
specific that is becoming air borne.

Ed Comboni said he never heard of Derby complaining of the same problem. It is
probably sewer gas.

Commissioner DeAngelis said to Tom Secondino, to keep servicing our plant with Jeff
and asked Alan Asikainen to get us some information on air testing and then a soil
scientist.

Mr. Sym said if it is sewer gas, we need to consider venting the collection system.

Tom Secondino said you can replace with coated coils, but the rest is exposed and is
subject to what is in the air. The copper is oxidizing and | am not saying the oxidization
is causing leaks. That is Trane’s position. | cannot fight with Trane. 1 think what would
be interesting, as that as | am doing these units, and the Sludge building is the worst, |
braised up every joint in there myself.

Alan Asikainen said now you can compare your brazing to what was done before.

Commissioner DeAngelis said we have to do our own research.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Tom Secondino said everything | have fixed has been a joint in the header or a braised
joint. 1 can supply you with service tickets.

The Commission thanked Mr. Secondino for coming this evening. It was a good
presentation.

Mr. Secondino left the meeting.
Tape 1 Side B 7:55 p.m.

Commissioner DeAngelis asked Jeff Shortell to continue with his report and asked if
there is anything unusual?

Jeff Shortell said the effluent total nitrogen is 76 Ibs a day when the goal is 121 - very
good. This is the lowest we have ever seen.

We are pumping slower. It is a balancing act.

The septage is going out to bid on 8/12/2010.

Commissioner Hellauer asked about the grease removal. Now the report shows by day.
Jeff Shortell said this is done seven (7) days a week. It is 150 pounds a day.

Ed Comboni said we bag it and estimate the weight. 7 days a week. This is pretty
accurate.

Critical Equipment out of service - Blower #2 kept going down from the heat and the
switch has to be adjusted to keep it running. It is back on line.

We are going out to bid for 3 impellers.
The alarm list was reviewed.

Commissioner DeAngelis reviewed the letter Jeff Shortell sent to the pump guy as the
Commission requested a few months ago. The letter was sent to Gayle Corp on July 19th
and they were put on notice.

Jeff Shortell said we put the pump in today and took another out. The response is that
they will pay Canfield for the parts.

Jeff Shortell satisfied the Commissions request for 4 items this month; letter to pump
guy, go out to bid to septage haulers, bring the guy from Superior and bring the critical
spare parts list.

Alan Asikainen said he talked to the local rep in CT and asked him if he could help us out
in regard to the second pump regards to parts at no charge to the City. They told me the
pumps you are having trouble with are a different design from the others.

Jeff Shortell will follow up with the second pump they took out today. He will follow-up
next month.

Alan Asikainen said he worked with KSB - it is a different pump design - the new one
Jeff got is made in Brazil.

Commissioner Morse asked if there are any other pumps you may have trouble with at
other pump stations?

Jeff Shortell gave Mike DeAngelis the critical spare parts list. He said he has ordered
something from the priority list.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Commissioner Morse said to Jeff Shortell that he has $40K to spend so go out to bid from
this list, then update the list and bring it back next month.

Jeff Shortell said $11K is a quote from Seimens for sludge thickener.
Jeff Shortell gave Commissioner Morse the Skada schematic from Aarons.

Jeff showed the list of impellers to Commissioner DeAngelis and he is going out to bid.
We have been told we have to go out to bid for everything. | was told from downstairs to
go out to bid for three impellers.

Alan Asikainen said regarding the impellers, he understands they want a bid spec but
there will be only one vendor (Flow Serve) that has parts that fit that particular pump.

The $40K is from Equipment Maintenance account.

Regarding a dumping policy - Commissioner DeAngelis said he would write the SOP
following Hadlyme’s/Maguire’s outline. He did not do it for this month - he will have it
for next month.

The nitrogen flow is very good as indicated by Commissioner Morse’s chart.

Commissioner Morse also presented his summary of rain vs. flow - hourly rainfall. Many
times after a rain event, there is a big spike.

Alan Asikainen said he wanted to talk about the Thickener Filtrate Analysis before Ed
and Jeff leave the meeting.

Mr. Asikainen said that the data generally showed that holding the sludge in the sludge
storage tank for three days instead of processing the sludge daily has less of an impact
(increase in concentration) as compared with processing the sludge daily. It was thought
that allowing the sludge to stay in the tank for a long period would increase the
concentration of constituents. The data generally did not prove this to be the case in most
of the samples taken.

The conclusion was daily processing of the waste did not decrease the concentration level
of constituents in most of the samples. Drawing down the level of the sludge every day
in the sludge holding tank did not improve the filtrate; in fact in most instances the
concentration was higher when processing the sludge daily.

Since there appears to be no benefit of drawing down the sludge every day below the
present mixer level, the staff could use a higher level in the tank for storage of sludge and
use the existing mixer to mix the contents of the tank.

So, the conclusion is to leave it status quo - which was a good find and thanks to Ed
Comboni for providing us with the data. Samplings took place for five consecutive

weeks this spring. The raw data on the graphs for ammonia nitrogen and BOD were
attached.

5. OLD BUSINESS

A. Contract Recommendations (Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 2)

The Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation Phase 2 project is part of the overall plan for
removal of groundwater from the sanitary sewer system. The sewer lines being
rehabilitated in this contract have been identified as sources of inflow/infiltration. The
streets involved with the lining part of the project are a section of Bridgeport Avenue,
Oak Avenue, Forest Avenue, Kneen Street Extension, Birch Street and High Street.

The contract price from the low bidder is NEPPCO for $513,598.37.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

There was discussion of pressure testing and sewer lining differences.

Mr. Chiu has no explanation and we have worked with NEPPCO and they were the low
bidder and are competent.

A. Contract Recommendation (Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation Phase 2)

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Morse and seconded by Commissioner
Hellauer that the Water Pollution Control Authority recommends that the Board of
AT&T award Bid #30-84 contract to the apparent low bidder New England Pipe
Cleaning Company (NEPPCO) for a total bid amount of $513,598.37. All were in favor.
Motion carried unanimously.

B. Maguire Group Status Report

Tiffany Rowin from Hadlyme gave Commissioner DeAngelis the SOP’s final manual.
The name for the data base is Shelton Tracking of Area Fats “STAF”.

We are preparing and sending out the mailings and initial inspections. Up to 120
variances and inspection of 20 FPE’s and we will work with sub consultant Carolyn
Wolfe.

Public Education - we can provide a write-up and our agreement does not cover a lot of
public education and perhaps you would want a special meeting? We are been ordering
some samples. There is training for Lori Gibson and Tom Sym.

Tom Sym said we are getting calls from customers and what is next? They are calling
me.

Ms. Rowin said the sub consultant can start inspections in September.

Mr. Sym said there will be 90% variances.

There was a lot of discussion of who does inspections, when, size of trap, how many do
we want to start with, etc. For example, Split Rock has four restaurants and they are all

going into one grease trap - who will be responsible?

Jim Swift (who was at the meeting for his application) indicated that one outdoor tank
serves two restaurants. Mr. Blakeman put in the tank.

Mr. Sym said Mr. Blakeman is not the permittee. Who is in charge of maintenance?
Would the program variance make the property owner responsible?
Tape 2 Side A 8:45 p.m.

So, who would be responsible when one tank serves two restaurants? Who is responsible
for the trap?

Mr. Sym said people we know who have traps (outdoor and indoor) and those who
contacted me and those who showed up at the Public Hearing we should do first - No?

There was discussion of approving the fee schedule tonight.
Commissioner Morse said the following things should go on the website:

e Ordinance

e Application

e Variance form
e Fee Schedule
e Renewal form




WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

e FAQ

Mr. Sym said we need to know who is doing the initial inspections. Hadlyme said they
would do twenty (20) inspections.

Tiffany Rowin said we have the data base set up and we will schedule the inspections and
she said she will mail out all applications.

Tom Sym gave Tiffany a list of those people who have been calling him.

Mr. Sym said we can mail out the applications here.

There was much discussion of who does what and when/procedures.

The applications/variances come to Shelton WPCA office and are then faxed to Hadlyme.
The inspection is done and entered into the computer - Hadlyme.

Hadlyme does the 120 variances.

Mr. Sym said he would rather swap out the mailings and get a few more inspections.

Commissioner Dognin said that Tom Sym, Lori Gibson and Hadlyme should get together
and work it out.

Tiffany Rowin said regarding the flow chart - they have done it but there is an additional
charge. Maguire Group has the job number and not sure of the cost.

Education of the Public - special meeting?

Commissioner Dognin said lets put it on ice for the moment.

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Dognin and seconded by Commissioner

Hellauer to add item 5C FOG Fee and Timeline Schedule to the agenda. All were in
favor. Motion carried unanimously.

C. FOG Fee and Timetable Schedule

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Dognin and seconded by Commissioner
Hellauer to adopt the FOG Fee and Timeline Schedule that was presented at the August
04, 2010 Public Hearing. All were in favor. Motion carried unanimously.

Fee and Timeline Schedule

Application Fees shall be Prorated at 6-Month Intervals
Fees
FPE Initial Application Fee  $100 Due with initial application for permit.

FPE Application Fee $50 paid every other year, due with submission of
renewal application

Late Fee $25 per month from date of Permit expiration



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Variance Fee

Re-Inspection Fine

Timelines
Compliance Date
Application Due Out
Application Due Back

Re-Inspection

Permit Expiration
Permits Issued

Accidental Spills

Appeal of Permit Revocation
SWPCA Decision on Appeal
Normal Pumping Frequency

Report Change in Variance
Conditions

Adopted 8/11/2010

No additional variance fee required with complete
application. Application fee will be refunded if program
variance is granted. No refund shall be made for
equipment variances.

$50 for re-inspection of BMP violations

$100 daily for an installation violation starting 91 days
after the initial violation notification

$100 daily 30 days after notification of violation for

unauthorized treatment equipment modifications of
operations

July 1, 2011
By November 1 Even Years
By December 1 Even Years

(BMP) a minimum of 30 days after previous failed

inspection

(installation) 30 days for contract plus an additional 60
days for installation

December 31 - Even Years
Within 14 days of compliance verification

Immediately report by phone and in writing within 5 days
Corrective action 30 days

FPE to respond in writing within 15 days
SWPCA to make decision within 60 days of receipt
3 months, longer or shorter by variance

Within 30 days of change



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Charles Chiu gave his status report.
Regarding JobCal the software is installed at the Plant and has started to be put in.
Roy Wood will come down for the first session.

Maguire Group’s Amendment #6 is for $20K and is additional services - JobCal plus
asset management software implementation for signing tonight.

(Note: it was not signed as Commissioner DeAngelis wants a breakdown.)
Commissioner DeAngelis said it is not broken down. The $20K is not broken down.

Mr. Chiu will send Commissioner DeAngelis a break down.

Mr. Chiu said this is previously in Ray Woods’s fees.

Mr. Chiu said the contract regarding Sanitary Sewer Rehab Phase 3 - 1&I Investigation
has no fees as it has to be negotiated with the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen have to
approve it. It is regarding overflows after the rain events. Commissioner Morse asked us

to put this together.

Mr. Asikainen said the Mayor wants to approve all the contracts. That is the direction we
were given.

Mr. Sym said to not get too carried away without a signed contract.
Commissioner Morse said we need to have it in place by next spring.
Mr. Asikainen said we have to reserve meters with Flow Assessments.
Mr. Chiu said we need to identify places for the next metering.

Maguire Group will meet with the Mayor with a proposal. Jim Fritsch from our office
will meet with the Mayor.

Mr. Chiu said he had a call from EPA regarding the staffing assessment regarding the
Assistant Sewer Administrator.

(Note: Commissioner Piotrowski left at 9:15 p.m.)

Commissioner Hellauer asked how many times do we need to do a study? We need to do
something when we do a study.

Mr. Chiu said a study needs to be done every 15 years or so. We need to identify the
places for the next metering.

Mr. Chiu said the construction contract with Gherlone - we need direction from the City
and cannot continue without it.

Commissioner DeAngelis said we will have an Executive Session on that tonight.

Commissioner Morse asked what is the status on the blower shieves Maguire Group was
getting for us?

Mr. Chiu said they are on order - 6 weeks lead time.

10



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

6. NEW BUSINESS
A. Bills Rendered

1. MAGUIREGROUP........coiiiii e, $3,444.00

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Dognin and seconded by Commissioner
Hellauer to authorize payment to Maguire Group for $3,444.00 invoice dated August 04,
2010 for Sludge Mixing. All were in favor. Motion carried unanimously. Monies to
come from the Digester Account.

2. MAGUIRE GROUP.........cciviviiiiie e .. $4,309.49

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Dognin and seconded by Commissioner
Hellauer to authorize payment to Maguire Group for $4,309.49 invoice dated August 04,
2010 for Consent Decree Compliance. All were in favor. Motion carried unanimously.
Monies to come from the Consent Decree Account.

3.MAGUIRE GROUP........o ittt e, $3,000.00

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Morse and seconded by Commissioner
Dognin to authorize payment to Maguire Group for $3,000 invoice dated August 04,
2010 for I/1 analysis. All were in favor. Motion carried unanimously. Monies to come
from the Referendum.

4. MAGUIRE GROUP........ccoiiii e, $2,364.59

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Dognin and seconded by Commissioner
Hellauer to authorize payment to Maguire Group for $2,364.59 invoice dated August 05,
2010 for Sewer Rehab Construction thru July 30, 2010. . All were in favor. Motion
carried unanimously. Monies to come from the Referendum account.

B. Scenic Grove Estates

Jim Swift, Professional Engineer

Mr. Swift indicated that this is located on Grove Street/Richard Boulevard. It is for
fifteen (15) new single homes.

We are proposing to extend the existing sewer system and we will be extending Richard
Boulevard since it dead ends.

We have an R3 piece of property with one house on it now. We want to extend Richard
Boulevard to Grove Street and plan to build an R3 class subdivision with public city
street and will be extending sewers in both directions - one went to Richard Boulevard,
gravity sewer and one out to Grove Street heading north to serve those lots.

There is no zone change and the lots meet regulations and no variance is required. It is
very standard. We are proposing to extend the city sewer system. There is no upgrade to
additional properties. The basic lot size is 12,000 sq. ft.

Commissioner Hellauer asked how much capacity is left?

11




WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Mr. Sym said we are going in two different places/areas here. One is going to Ladis
Place pump station and one is going directly to the plant. Both are in area 6 So,
ultimately, they go to the same place.

Tape 2 Side A 9:25 p.m.
The application was given to Maguire Group for their review.
The application and plans were given to Charles Chiu.
E. Sewer Administrator’s Report
Mr. Sym said he is going over the list and a lot of the restaurants, 90% will need
variances. | marked up some of them in red who have the outdoor grease interceptor.
The newer buildings done in the last ten years or so. Everyone else has indoor or none.
He will get together with the Board of Education at the High School because he is not
sure if there is a sewer at that hot dog stand.

Mr. Sym will do a dye test and he will send a letter to the Superintendent to designate a
person involved with the school traps.

Commissioner Morse said the applications need a drop dead date.

There was discussion on monies and where some future items will be coming from, etc.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Hellauer and seconded by Commissioner
Dognin to go into Executive Session. All were in favor. The WPCA went into Executive
Session at 9:25 p.m. The following were in attendance in the Executive Session:

Commissioner Michael DeAngelis
Commissioner Stephen Morse
Commissioner Regis Dognin
Commissioner Edwin Hellauer
Alan Asikainen, Maguire Group
Charles Chiu, Maguire Group
Steve Landry, Maguire Group
Thomas Sym, Sewer Administrator
Linda Hooper, Clerk

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Hellauer and seconded by Commissioner
Morse to come out of Executive Session. All were in favor. The WPCA came out of
Executive Session at 9:55 p.m. The following were in attendance in the Executive
Session:

Commissioner Michael DeAngelis
Commissioner Stephen Morse
Commissioner Regis Dognin
Commissioner Edwin Hellauer
Alan Asikainen, Maguire Group
Charles Chiu, Maguire Group
Steve Landry, Maguire Group
Thomas Sym, Sewer Administrator
Linda Hooper, Clerk

12




WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY-REG. MEETING- AUG. 11, 2010

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Hellauer and seconded by Commissioner
Morse to return to the Regular Meeting. All were in favor. The WPCA returned to the
Regular Meeting at 9:56 p.m. The following were in attendance:

Commissioner Michael DeAngelis
Commissioner Stephen Morse
Commissioner Regis Dognin
Commissioner Edwin Hellauer
Alan Asikainen, Maguire Group
Charles Chiu, Maguire Group
Steve Landry, Maguire Group
Thomas Sym, Sewer Administrator
Linda Hooper, Clerk

8. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct this evening,

Motion: A motion was made by Commissioner Hellauer and seconded by Commissioner
Morse to adjourn. All were in favor. Motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 10:02 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Linda M. Hooper

Clerk
2 Tapes on file with the City/Town Clerk

13




